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SoANNED MAR 09 2012

| OMB No 1545-0047

2010

Open to Public

Form 990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except black lung
benefit trust or private foundation)

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service » The organization may have to use a copy of this return to satisfy state reporting requirements Inspection

A For the 2010 calendar year, or tax year beginning July 1 , 2010, and ending June 30 ,20 11

B Check if applicable |€ Name of organization Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens | D Employer dentification number

[J Address change Doing Business As 13-5658824

|:| Name change Number and street (or P O box if mail 1s not delivered to street address) Room/suite E Telephone number

OJ initial return 6-8 Charlton Street 609-683-0800

O Terminated City or town, state or country, and ZIP + 4

[J Amended retum Princeton , New Jersey 08540-5232 G Gross receipts $ 15,299,301

[[] Application pending [ F Name and address of principal officer H(a) Isths a group return for affiiates? [ ] Yes [¥] No
Charles Willlams, Board Chair, c/lo ASCSA H(b) Are all affiiates ncluded? | ] Yes [ ] No

| Tax-exempt status 501(c)3) ] s01() ( ) @ gnsertno) []4947@(1yor []527 if “No," attach a list (see nstructions)

J Website: »» www.ascsa.org H(c) Group exemption number P> na

K Form of organization . Corporation I:] Trust D Association D Other P> | L Year of formation 1881 I M State of legal domicile MA

Summary

Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities: The American School of Classical Studies (ASCS),
® located in the heart of Greece's capital city, is one of America's most distinguished centers devoted to advanced study of Greece
g in all historical periods.

c
% 2 Check this box » [ f the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assts.
g 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) . 3 21
@ | 4 Number of Independent voting members of the governing body {Part VI, line 1b) 4 21
€| 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2010 (Part V, line 2a) e 5 31
E 6  Total number of volunteers (estimate If necessary) .o . . ; . 6 5
7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VI, column (C) line 12 Coe . 7a -3,960
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 34 . . . .. 7b 0
Pnor Year Current Year
o | 8 Contributions and grants (Part VI, kae<lh) o 2,934,407 3,477,764
g 9  Program service revenue (Part VIIL”l;lne QQREC E'VED .o 849,176 865,321
2 | 10 Investment income (Part VI, colu ytmres - 8rdand-Fay— .. 1,756,945 10,929,000
111 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A}, fines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9¢, 10c, anddie) . . 44,480 27,216
12  Total revenue—add lines 8 through LI(nungqBal&:ln Qfl‘ﬂz:olui@( A), ine 12) 5,585,008 15,299,301
13  Grants and similar amounts paid I?e'iH X, column (A) lines 1-3) 488,618 438,743
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX : . Co 0 0
2 15  Salaries, other compensation, employee béne! LA Hnes 5-10) 5,564,509 6,356,467
2 | 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e) e 0 0
§ b Total fundraising expenses (Part iX, column (D), Iine 25) » 447,743
W47  Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), ines 11a-11d, 11=24f) . . . . . . 4,678,612 4,687,756
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 10,731,739 11,482,966
19  Revenue less expenses. Subtract ine 18 fromhne12 . . . . . . . -5,146,731 3,816,335
5 g Beginning of Current Year End of Year
£5/ 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) . . . e e e 143,672,379 167,789,595
:x"_’% 21 Total habilities (Part X, ine 26) . . . . . o 769,440 778,503
23| 2 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 e 142,902,939 167,011,092

Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it 1s
true, correct, and complete Declaration of preparer (other than officer) 1s based on all nfformation of which preparer has any knowledge

Sign } Signature of officer Date
Here Jonw T Sppovee,  (fo d-/1-1612
Type or print name and title

Pai d Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date Check D i PTIN
Pr eparer self-employed
Use only Firm’s name > Firm's EIN »

Firm's address » Phone no
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) . . . . . . . . . . . OvYesdNo
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Cat No 11282Y Form 990 (2010)

9172




Form 990 (2010) Page 2
. IElgdll] Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part {l! . . e .. O

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission*

The School's mission is (1) to teach the archaeology, art, history, language, and literature of Greece from earliest time to present (2)
to survey and excavate archaeological sites in Greek lands and (3) to publish the results of its research and excavations and to
AN Drary GO ONS.

2 D the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form 990 or 990-EZ? e [Yes No
If “Yes,” describe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
services? . . . . . . CJYes []No
If “Yes,” describe these changes on Schedule O.

4 Describe the exempt purpose achievements for each of the organization’s three largest program services by expenses. Section
501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations and section 4947(a)(1) trusts are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to
others, the total expenses, and revenue, If any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code na  )(Expenses$ 1,809,124 including grantsof § 340,743 ) (Revenue$ 1,435,541 )
Instruction and Student Support
The School is a non-degree granting overseas research institute, with a 9-month program of study for approximately 20 graduate
level students, an independent study facility for about 79 post graduate scholars and two 6-week summer programs for about
40 students and teachers. In addition there are 5 study trips made available to students and visiting scholars. The School
maintains 3-4 full year faculty.

4b (Code. __na___ )(Expenses$ 3,870,306 includnggrantsof$_ 98000 )(Revenue$ 1,139,941 )
Excavations
The School maintains two active excavations at the Athenian Agora and at Corinth which are staffed year-round. During the summer
approximately 40 students take part in an 8 week excavation session at the Agora. Both excavations maintain archaeological
collections which are overseen by the Greek Archaeological Service.

4c (Code: _na  )(Expenses$ 4051844 includnggrantsof & 0 )(Revenue$ 1,882,965 )
Publications and Libraries
The American School maintains and operates two research libraries holding about 218,000 volumes. The Blegen Library has one
of the most complete collections in the world for research in the civilization of ancient Greece. The Gennadius Library houses both
volumes and electronic resources which comprise the most significant collection for the study of Hellenic civilization after the end
of antiquity.

The School publishes scholarly research in the form of books (some 5-8 volumes per year) and a quarterly Journal. The current
catalogue of available publications numbers about 135tittes.

4d Other program services. (Describe in Schedule O.)

(Expenses $ 0 ncluding grants of $ 0 ) (Revenue $ 0)

4e Total program service expenses b 9,731,274

Form 990 (2010)
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Form 930 (2010) Page 3
Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes No
1 Is the organization described In section 501( )(3) or 4947( )(1) (other than a private foundation)? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule A . . . . . . e e . .o 1| v
2 |s the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? (see Iinstructions) . . 2 (v
3 Did the organization engage In direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposntlon to
candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part! . . . 3 v
4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h)
election In effect during the tax year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part!l . . . . . . . . . 4 v
5 Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,
/ assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197 If “Yes,” complete Schedule C,
Partlll . . . . . . . . ..o oo s 5 4
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts where donors have
the night to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part!. . . . . .o e . 6 v
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, mcludlng easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Il . . . 7 v
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part!ll . . . . . . . .. o e e 8 |V
9 Did the organization report an amount In Part X, ine 21, serve as a custodian for amounts not listed in Part
X; or provide credit counseling, debt management credit repair, or debt negotiation services? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Partly . . . . . L. e e e e .. 9 v
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in term, permanent, or quasi-
endowments? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, PartV. . . . . 10| v
11 If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions i1s “Yes then complete Schedule D Parts VI
VI, VIII, IX, or X as applicable.
‘ a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? /f “Yes,”
% complete Schedule D, PartVI . . . . . . ) 11al v
r b Did the organization report an amount for investments— other securities in Part X, Ilne 12 that IS 5% or more
1 of its total assets reported in Part X, ine 16? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VIl . . . . 11ib| vV
¢ Did the organmization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VIl . . 11c v
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that 1s 5% or more of its totaI assets
reported in Part X, ine 167 If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IX . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11d v
e Did the organization report an amount for other labilities in Part X, line 25?7 If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X 11e v
f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax posttions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X . 11f v
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If “Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Parts X, Xil, and Xill . 12al ¥
b Was the organization included in consolidated, mdependent audlted flnanC|aI statements for the tax year’7 lf “Yes " and if
the organization answered "No” to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI, Xil, and Xlil is optional . . . . . 12b v
13 Is the organization a schoo! described in section 170(b)(1)(A)Yn)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule E . . . . 13 (v
‘ 14 a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? . . 14a| v
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundralsmg,
business, and program service activities outside the United States? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Partsand IV |14b| v
15  Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), ine 3, more than $5,000 of grants or assistance to any
organization or entity located outside the United States? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts lland IV . . 15 v
16  Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), Iine 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or assistance
to individuals located outside the United States? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts lifand IV . . . . 16 | v
17  Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on
Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part | (see instructions) . . .o 17 v
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on
Part VIiil, lines 1c and 8a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part il . . . 18 | v
19  Dud the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII I|ne 93’7
If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Partilll . . . . e e 19 v
20 a Did the organization operate one or more hospitals? /f "Yes comp/ete Schedule H . . . . 20a v
b If “Yes” to line 20a, did the organization attach its audited financial statements to this return? Note Some
Form 990 filers that operate one or more hospitals must attach audited financial statements (see instructions) | 20pb

Form 990 (2010)
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‘ Checklist of Required Schedules (continuead)
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Page 4

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to governments and organizations
in the United States on Part IX, column (A), ine 1? If “Yes,” complete Schedule |, Parts | and Il

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to individuals in the United States
on Part IX, column (A), line 2? If “Yes,” complete Schedule |, Parts | and Ill

Did the organization answer “Yes” to Part Vil, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the
organization’s current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated
employees? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J .

Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was 1ssued after December 31, 20027 If “Yes,” answer lines 24b
through 24d and complete Schedule K. If “No,” go to line 25 .

Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exceptlon'7 .
Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds?

Did the organization act as an “on behalf of” issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year?
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c){4) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit transaction
with a disqualified person during the year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part |

Is the organization aware that it engaged In an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ?
If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part | . . .o . .
Was a loan to or by a current or former officer, dlrector trustee, key employee hlghly compensated employee or
disqualified person outstanding as of the end of the organization’s tax year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part Il .

Did the orgamization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee,
substantial contributor, or a grant selection committee member, or to a person related to such an individual?
If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part il

Was the organization a party to a business transaction W|th one of the followrng partles (see Schedule L,
Part IV instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV

A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If “Yes,” complete
Schedule L, Part IV Ce

An entity of which a current or former offlcer dlrector trustee, or key employee (or a famlly member thereof)
was an officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV

Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M
Did the organization receive contnibutions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified
conservation contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M .o

Did the organization hquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operatlons'7 If “Yes,” complete Schedule N,
Part | e .o

Did the organization sell, exchange dlspose of or transfer more than 25% of its net assets’7 lf “Yes
complete Schedule N, Part Il

Did the organization own 100% of an entity dlsregarded as separate from the organlzatlon under Regulatlons
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part | .

Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R Parts A IlI
V,and V, lne 1 .

Is any related organization a controlled entlty within the meaning of section 512(b)(1 3)?

Did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a

controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R,

PartV,ne2 . . . . . . . [JYes [“INo
Section 501(c)(3) orgamzatlons D|d the organlzatlon make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable
related organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . e

Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that 1s not a related organization
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R,

Part VI .

Did the organization complete Schedule (0] and prowde explanatlons in Schedule O for Part v, I|nes 11 and
197 Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O

Yes | No

21 v

22 v

23 | v

24a v

24b

24c

24d

25a v

25b v

26 v

28a v

28b

<~

28c

29 | v/

30

31

32

33

34

Y S b N b N N

35

37 v

3 | v
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Form 990 (2010)
' Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Page 5

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part V 0
Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . . 1a 29
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in ine 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . . 1b 0
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and
reportable gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners? . 1clv
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmlttal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return | 2a 31
b If at least one I1s reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? 2b |V
Note. If the sum of ines 1a and 2a I1s greater than 250, you may be required to e-file. (see instructions)
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? 3a | v
b If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If “No,” provide an explanation in Schedule O . . 3b |V
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authonty
over, a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial
account)? . 4alv
b If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country: »  Greece and London
See instructions for filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22.1, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts.
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? ba v
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or 1s a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b v
¢ If “Yes” to ine 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? . 5c
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $1OO 000 and d|d the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible? . 6a | v
b If “Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contnbutlons or
gifts were not tax deductible? 6b | v
7 Organizations that may receive deductlble contrlbutlons under sectlon 170(c)
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contnibution and partly for goods
and services provided to the payor? . . . e . . . . 7a | v
b If “Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . 7b |V
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was
required to file Form 82827 . e e e e e . Coe e 7c v
d If “Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year . . . 7d
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? | 7e v
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . 7f v
g [f the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? | 7g
h  If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds and section 509(a)(3) supporting
organizations. Did the supporting organization, or a donor advised fund maintained by a sponsoring
organization, have excess business holdings at any time during the year? 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the organization make any taxable distributions under section 49667 9a
b Did the organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person” 9b
10 Section 501{(c)(7) organizations. Enter;
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part Vil Ine 12 . . . . . 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part Viil, line 12, for public use of club faC|I|t|es . 10b
11 Section 501(c){12) organizations. Enter.
a Gross income from members or shareholders . . 11a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or pald to other sources
against amounts due or received fromthem.) . . . . . . . . . . . 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization flllng Form 990 in lieu of Form 104172 12a
b If “Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year . . 12b
13  Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a s the organization licensed to i1ssue qualified health plans in more than one state? . 13a
Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization Is required to maintain by the states in which
the organization I1s licensed to issue qualified health plans e e e e 13b
¢ Enter the amount ofreservesonhand . . . . 13¢c
14a Did the organization receive any payments for mdoor tanmng services durlng the tax year" . 14a
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No," provide an explanation in Schedule O 14b

Form 990 (2010)




Form 990 (2010) Page 6
Z1a@"] Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each “Yes” response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a

“No” response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule
O. See instructions.

N O s

b
9

10a
b

13
14
15

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this PartVl . . . . e e e O
Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No
Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year. 1a 21
Enter the number of voting members included in hne 1a, above, who are independent . 1b 21
Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? R 2 v
Did the organization delegate control over management duties customanly performed by or under the d|rect
supervision of officers, directors or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? . 3 v
Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4 v
Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? . 5 v
Does the organization have members or stockholders? 6 v
Does the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who may elect one or more members
of the governing body? . . . . . . .. . . . e e e 7a v
Are any decisions of the governing body subject to approval by members, stockholders, or other persons? 7b v
Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during
the year by the following:
The governing body? . . . e e 8a |v
Each commuttee with authonty to act on behalf of the governlng body'? . 8b | v
Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at
the organization’s mailing address? If “Yes,” provide the names and addresses in Schedule O . . . . 9 v

Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)

Yes { No
Does the organization have local chapters, branches, or affilates? . . . 10a v
If “Yes,” does the organization have wntten policies and procedures governlng the actlvmes of such
chapters, affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with those of the organization? . 10b
Has the organlzatlon provided a copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the
form? . . . . . 1Mal v
Describe in Schedule O the process, |f any, used by the organlzatlon to review thrs Form 990
Does the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If “No,”"gotolne 13 . . . . . 12a| v/
Are officers, directors or trustees, and key employees reqmred to disclose annually interests that could give
rise to conflicts? e . . e e e .. . . 12b| v
Does the organization regularly and con5|stently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If “Yes,”
describe in Schedule O how thisi1sdone. . . . C e e e e 12¢| vV
Does the organization have a wnitten whistleblower pollcy'7 o e e e e 13(Vv
Does the organization have a written document retention and destruction pollcy'7 o 14|V
Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official . . . e .o 15a| v
Other officers or key employees of the organization . .. .. .. 15b| v

16a

If “Yes” to ine 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (See mstructrons)
Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or snmllar arrangement
with a taxable entity duringtheyear?. . . . . . . . . . e e e e 16a v

If “Yes,” has the organization adopted a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and taken steps to safeguard the
organization’s exempt status with respect to such arrangements? . - e . 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17
18

19

20

List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be fled »  NY, NJ amd MA

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. Indicate how you make these available. Check all that apply.

[ Oown website [ Another’s website Upon request

Describe in Schedule O whether (and If so, how), the organization makes its governing documents, conflict of interest policy,
and financial statements available to the public.

State the name, physical address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the
organization: > R Rosolino, ASCS, 6-8 Charlton Street, Princeton, NJ 08540-5232 Tele: 609-683-0800

Form 990 (2010)




Form 990 (2010) Page 7
* Ix:lsd'/IB Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees,

and Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part Vii . e e e e . 0O
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization’s tax year.
e List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.
» List all of the organization’s current key employees, If any. See instructions for definition of “key employee.”
¢ List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.
e List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations
e List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
List persons In the following order: individual trustees or directors, institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest
compensated employees, and former such persons.
(] Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(A) (B) ©) (D) (E) 3}
Name and Title Average Position (check all that apply) Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per os|s|olxlex]| compensation |compensation from amount of
week :1 gzl F & 133 cg Q from related other
(describe | 3 g_ =3 3 2|98 g the organizations compensation
hours for g— g § 13 ?g al organization {W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related Sal 2 g g (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations; & | I 8 8 and related
in Schedule o1 a 2 organizations
0) 3 %
(1) Charles Williams na 0 na 0
Board Chair aKs
(2) Robert McCabe na 0 na 0
Board President |7
(3) Henry Davis
Board Treasurer na |V 0 na 0
(4) William Loomis na 0 na 0
Board Secretary iV
(5) Joan Bingham na 0 na 0
Trustee v
6) Andrew Bridges
'I!rl.)lstee ? na v 0 na 0
(7) Jane Buikstra na 0 na 0
Trustee v
(8) Jonathan Cohen na 0 na 0
Trustee v
(9) Paul Friedland na 0 na 0
Trustee v
10) Elizabeth Gebhard
(Trlistee na v 0 na °
(11) Mary Lefkowitz na 0 na 0
Trustee v
(12) J Robert Maguire na 0 na 0
Trustee v
(13) James R McCredie na 0 na 0
Trustee v
(14) Nassos Michas na 0 na 0
Trustee v
(15) Hunter Rawlings _ na 0 na 0
Trustee v
(16) Damaris Skouras
Trustee na v 0 na 0

Form 990 (2010)
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il Part VII Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

(A) (8) ©) (D) (E) F
Name and title Average Position (check all that apply) Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per — 1 = compensation |[compensation from amount of
week ia 2 S § %51 ‘-2" from related other
(descnbe | 35| € g o ag F the organizations compensation
hours for 8‘ S|s ‘3 § o] | organzation | (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related RZ| 8 8 S (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations| & | = 3 E and related
in Schedule 2| a 2 organizations
0) 8 2
a
(17) wWilliam Slaughter na 0 na 0
Trustee v
i
(18) Phaedon Tamvakakis na 0 na 0
Trustee 4
(19) Judith Thomson na 0 na 0
Trustee v
(20) Malcolm Wiener na 0 na 0
Trustee v
(21) Alexander Zagoreos . na 0 na B
Trustee v
(22)
I
(23) Pantelis Panos (Euro paid employee-no w-2) 40 208,491 na 5,039
General Manager v
Lo ——— 40 135,828 na 12,852
Administrative Director v
le (1
(25)Johr_| Sproule (1099) L 10 39,900 na o
Consulting CFO v
(26) Jack Davis
=== 40 2,773 na 30,000
Director of the School v
(27) Guy Sanders 40 140,931 na 1,495
Corinth Director v
Richard R i
(28) Richard Rosolino 40 104,442 na 28,171
Budget Director v
1b Sub-total . » 632,365 na 717,557
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part VII Sectlon A > na na na
d Total (add lines 1b and 1¢) > 632,365 na 77.557
2  Total number of individuals (including but not Ilmlted to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 in
reportable compensation from the organization » 4
Yes| No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual . .. 3 v
4  For any individual listed on ine 1a, 1s the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organlzatlons greater than $150,000? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
individual . . . e e 4 | v
5 Did any person listed on line 1a recelve or accrue compensation from any unrelated organlzatlon or |nd|V|duaI
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person 5 | v
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the orgamization.
(GY] (B) (%]
Name and business address Description of services Compensation
Mayo Investment Advisors Investment Advisors 286,868
University of Cincinnati Personnel Services (Sch J) 231,437
Rue Insurance Agency Insurance 224,625
J.W. Bristol Investment Advisors 159,648
John McCarthy Office rental 100,496

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not imited to those listed above) who
received more than $100,000 in compensation from the organization » 5

Form 990 (2010)
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121981}  Statement of Revenue

<

G Ee

3

T T L S i n Y

€0 "epe %

7

e A
iy
o an s Pty
o337

(A)
Total revenue

(D)
Revenue

excluded from tax
under sections
512, 513, or 514

£ 2 1a Federated campaigns . | 1a
g 3 b Membership dues . . 1b :
s E| ¢ Fundrasingevents . . 1c 5,440
% H d Related organizations .. | 1d 0
gE e Covernment grants (contributions) | 1e 280,214 3
S g f All other contributions, gifts, grants,
§ g and similar amounts not included above | 1f 3,192,110/ !
*g -§ g Noncash contributions mncluded in nes 1a-1¢$ | M«%“@\sg:
O h  Total. Add lines 1a-1f . . . > 3,477,764 |3
g Business Code SAE2 ”:ff\ ‘/‘,
$ | 2a Student Tuition and Fees 611710 571,788
& b Publication Income ) 611710 174,634 0
3 ¢ Miscellaneous ) 611710 118,899 0
,}E; d - 0
g e 0
=3 f All other program service revenue
& g Total. Add Iines 2a-2f .. .. . > 865,321
3 Investment income (including dividends, Interest,
and other similar amounts) . | 4 2,867,382 2,871,342
4  Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds 0 0
5 Royalties . ... r
(1) Real (1) Personal
6a Gross Rents
b Less: rental expenses I
¢ Rental income or (loss}) 0
d Net rental income or (loss) . .y . >
7a  Gross amount from sales of (i) Secunities (i) Other
assets other than inventory 217,238,024
b Less' cost or other basis
and sales expenses . 209,176,406
¢ Gamnor(oss) . . 8,061,618
d Net gain or (loss) Co . »
g 8a Gross income from fundraising
g events (not including $ 5,440
K of contributions reported on line 1c).
E’ See PartIV,line 18 . . . a 59.710/.
o b Less direct expenses . b 32,494|
¢ Netincome or (loss) from fundraising events . »
9a Gross income from gaming activiies
See Part IV, ine 19 . a 0|
b Less: direct expenses . . . b 0
¢ Netincome or (loss) from gaming activities . . »
10a Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances . a 0
b Less. cost of goods sold . . b 0
¢ Netincome or (loss) from sales of inventory >
Miscellaneous Revenue Business Code
11a e
b - _—
c __________
d Allotherrevenue . . . . | 0 0
e Total. Add lines 11a-11d . > o, s By e
12 Total revenue. See instructions . . . . . » 15,299,301 10,960,176

Form 990 (2010)
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page 10

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns.
All other organizations must complete column (A) but are not required to complete columns (B), (C), and (D)

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, A (B) © (D)
7b, 86, 9b, and 10b of Part VIl ' Total expenses el I Fexponses’
1 Grants and other assistance to governments and
organizations in the U.S. See Part IV, ine 21 . 0 0
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in
the U.S. See Part IV, line 22 0 0
3 Grants and other assistance to governments,
organizations, and individuals outside the
U S. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 438,743 438,743
4  Benefits paid to or for members 0 0
5 Compensation of current officers, dlrectors
trustees, and key employees . 369,166 98,100 170,086 100,980
6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) 0 0 0 0
7  Other salanes and wages . 4,410,364 3,597,836 670,736 141,792
8 Pension plan contributions (include sectlon 401( {
and section 403(b) employer contributions) 181,677 165,157 8,564 7,956
9 Other employee benefits . 637,255 557,305 62,038 17,912
10 Payroll taxes 758,005 682,268 58,769 16,968
1 Fees for services (non- employees)
a Management 0 0 0 0
b Legal 65,316 63,615 1,701 0
¢ Accounting 115,217 115,217 0 0
d Lobbying . 0 0 0 0
e Professional fundralsmg SEervices. See Part IV Ime 17 0 0
f Investment management fees 472,477 472,477 0 0
g Other 0 0 0 0
12  Advertising and promotlon 11,626 0 0 11,626
13  Office expenses 383,552 297,938 75,347 10,267
14  Information technology 64,520 64,520 0 0
15 Royalties . 0 0 0 0
16  Occupancy 115,605 57,802 40,462 17,341
17  Travel 35,484 23,513 0 11,971
18 Payments of travel or entertalnment expenees
for any federal, state, or local public officials 0 0 0 0
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 0 0 0 0
20 Interest . . 0 0 0 0
21  Payments to afflllates 0 0 0 0
22  Depreciation, depletion, and amomzatlon 661,936 661,936 0 0
23 Insurance . e e e e e 222,865 121,600 101,265 0
24  Other expenses. ltemize expenses not covered
above (List miscellaneous expenses in line 24f. If
line 24f amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 24f expenses on Schedule O))
a Excavation expenses 612,432 612,432 0 0
b Library Additions/Costs 516,977 516,977 0 0
¢ Instructional Costs/Summer School 653,755 653,755 0 0
d Publications 181,207 181,207 0 0
e Utilities 370,479 289,056 69,210 12,213
f All other expenses 204,308 59,820 45,771 98,717
25  Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24f 11,482,966 9,731,274 1,303,949 447,743
26 Joint costs. Check here &[] if following
SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720). Complete this line
only Iif the organization reported in column
(B) joint costs from a combined educational
campaign and fundraising solicitation 0 0 0 0

Form 990 (2010)
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‘ Balance Sheet

page 11

A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash—non-interest-bearing coe 1,266,051 1 1,298,769
2 Savings and temporary cash investments . ol 2 0
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 466,546 3 797,505
4  Accounts receivable, net 391,145| 4 306,840
5 Receiwvables from current and former offlcers dlrectors trustees key
employees, and highest compensated employees Complete Part |l of )
Schedule L e e e - ol 5 0
6 Recelvables from other d|squa||f|ed persons (as defined under section
4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contnbuting
employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary
@ employees' beneficiary organizations (see mnstructions) .. ol 6 0
§ 7 Notes and loans receivable, net ol 7 0
< | 8 Iinventones for sale or use . 0ol 8 0
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 114,750 9 90,766
10a Land, buildings, and equipment cost or
other basis. Complete Part V! of Schedule D 10a 18,640,010
b Less: accumulated depreciation 10b 12,692,903 6,296,869 10c 5,947,107
11 Investments—publicly traded securities . 104,843,890| 11 121,692,776
12  Investments—other securities. See Part IV, line 11 29,748,871 12 37,155,875
13  Investments—program-related. See Part IV, ine 11 . 0l 13 0
14 Intangible assets 0| 14
15  Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 . .. 544,257| 15 499,957
16 Total assets. Add ines 1 through 15 (must equal Ilne 34) 143,672,379 16 167,789,595
17  Accounts payable and accrued expenses . 614,297 17 612,225
18 Grants payable . 0| 18 0
19 Deferred revenue . . 155,143| 19 166,278
20 Tax-exempt bond labilities . . 0| 20 0
@121  Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D 0o 21 0
g 22 Payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees, key
| employees, highest compensated employees, and dlsquahfled persons.
| Complete Part Il of Schedule L . P o| 22 0
23  Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 0| 23 0
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 0} 24 0
25 Other liabilities. Complete Part X of Schedule D . 0| 25 0
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 769,440| 26 778,503
Organizations that follow SFAS 117, check here » . and complete
§ lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
S 127 Unrestricted net assets 65,574,245| 27 76,189,050
g 28 Temporarily restricted net assets . 54,484,727| 28 67,758,329
2 29 Permanently restricted net assets . 22,843,967| 29 23,063,713
2 Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 check here > Ij and
5 complete lines 30 through 34.
£ |30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds . 0| 30 0
% 31 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund 0| 31 0
ﬁ 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . 0} 32 0
g 33 Total net assets or fund balances . . 142,902,939| 33 167,011,092
34 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances . 142,902,939 34 167,011,092
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‘ Part Xl Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part X

O

DN b WD =

EEEI Financial Statements and Reportlng

Total revenue (must equal Part Vill, column (A), Iine 12) .

15,299,301

Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), ine 25)

11,482,966

Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1

3,816,335

Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X I|ne 33 column (A))

142,902,939

QL (WIN|-

Other changes In net assets or fund balances (explamn in Schedule O)

20,291,818

Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3, 4, and 5 (must equal Part X, I|ne 33,
column (B))

»

167,011,092

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part XII

]

2a

3a

Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990 [] Cash Accrual [] Other

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked “Other,” explain in

Schedule O.

Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? .

Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant?

If “Yes” to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for overS|ght
of the audit, review, or compilation of its financtal statements and selection of an independent accountant?
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in
Schedule O.

If “Yes” to line 2a or 2b, check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were
iIssued on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

Separate basis [ ] Consolidated basis [] Both consolidated and separate basis

As a result of a federal award, was the organization requwed to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in
the Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-1337. Coe e
If “Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audlts'7 If the organlzatlon d|d not undergo the
required audit or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits

Yes | No

2a

2b

2¢

3a

3b

Form 990 (2010)




" (Form 990 or 990-E2) Public Charity Status and Public Support

SCHEDULE A | OMB No 1545-0047

2010

Open to Public

Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.
Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service » Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. » See separate instructions. Inspection
Name of the organization ] Employer identification number
Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens 13-5658824

Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization is not a private foundation because it 1s (For lines 1 through 11, check only one box.)
1 [ A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b){1)(A)(i).
2 A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E.)
3 [J A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b){(1)}{(A)(iii).
4 [] A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the
hospital’s name, city, and state:
(] An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described Iin
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part Il.)

[] A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

(J An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described In section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part !l.)

8 [ A community trust described 1n section 170(b){1){(A){vi). (Complete Part Ii.)

9 Oan organization that normally receives. (1) more than 33/:% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions—subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33'/3% of its
support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a){2). (Complete Part !Il.)

10 [ An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

11 [JAn organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the
purposes of one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section
509(a)(3). Check the box that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 11e through 11h.

a [ Typel b [ Typell ¢ [ Type llI-Functionally integrated d [ Type ll-Other
e [ By checking this box, | certify that the organization 1s not controlled directly or indirectly by one or more disqualified persons
other than foundation managers and other than one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1)
or section 509(a)(2).
f If the organization received a wrntten determination from the IRS that 1t is a Type |, Type Il, or Type lll supporting

()]

~N O

organization, check thisbox . . . . . e, e e e e e O
g Since August 17, 2006, has the organization accepted any gift or contribution from any of the
following persons?
(i) A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons descrnibed in (1) and Yes | No
(n) below, the governing body of the supported organization? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11g(i)
(ii) A family member of a person described in (1) above? . . . . . . . 11gfin)
(iii) A 35% controlled entity of a person described in () or () above? . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11g(m)
h Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).
(i) Name of supported () EIN (w1) Type of organization | (v) Is the organization (v) Did you notify {vi) Is the {wii) Amount of
organization (described on lines 1-9 | incol (1)) isted n your | the organization in organization in co! support
above or IRC section governing document? col (1) of your (1) organized in the
(see instructions)) support? us?
Yes No Yes No Yes No
(A) na
(B)
©
(D)
(E)
Total
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Cat No 11285F Schedute A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010

Form 990 or 990-EZ.
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Page 2

‘ Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1){A)(vi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under

Part Ill. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part 1l1.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » | (a) 2006 {b) 2007 (c) 2008 (d) 2009 (e) 2010 {f) Total

1

Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not na
include any "unusual grants.”} .

2 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf
3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge
Total. Add hines 1 through 3.
5 The portion of total contributions by
each person (other than a
governmental umt or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column (f) .
6  Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » | (a) 2006 (b) 2007 (c) 2008 (d) 2009 {e) 2010 (f) Total
7 Amounts fromhned4 . . . . na
| 8 Gross income from interest, d|V|dends

payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties and income from similar

sources
9 Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
1s regularly carried on .
10  Other income Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part IV.) . ..
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10
12  Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) e 12 |
13  First five years. |f the Form 990 1s for the organization’s first, second, thlrd fo.thh or flﬂh tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop here . . o e aE
| Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
| 14  Public support percentage for 2010 (line 6, column (f) divided by ine 11, column (f)) . . . . 14 %
| 15  Public support percentage from 2009 Schedule A, Part i, ne 14 . . . 15 %
16a 333% support test—2010. If the organization did not check the box on lme 13 and I|ne 14 IS 33‘/3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . » O
b 33'3% support test—2009. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and I|ne 15 IS 331/3% or more,
check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . > O
17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2010. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 141s
10% or more, and If the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here. Explain in
Part IV how the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization - e e e e O
b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2009. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line
15 1s 10% or more, and If the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here
Explain in Part IV how the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization qualifies as a publicly
supported organization . . o > O
18 Private foundation. If the organlzatlon d|d not check a box on Ilne 13, 16a 16b 17a or 17b check th|s box and see
nstructions . . . . . . . L . L . . oL e s e e e e

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010
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ETadll  Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a){2)

(Complete only If you checked the box on line 9 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il.
If the organization fails to qualfy under the tests listed below, please complete Part Il.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » | (a) 2006 {b) 2007 (c) 2008 (d) 2009 (e) 2010 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and membership fees
received. (Do not include any "unusual grants.”) na
| 2  Gross recelpts from admissions, merchandise
| sold or services performed, or faciities
‘ furnished in any activity that 1s related to the
organization’s tax-exempt purpose .
‘ 3  Gross receipts from activities that are not an
i unrelated trade or business under section 513
4 Tax revenues levied for the
organization’s benefit and either pad
to or expended on its behalf
5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge .
6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5.
7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3

8

[

received from disqualified persons

Amounts Iincluded on lines 2 and 3
received from other than disqualified
persons that exceed the greater of $5,000
or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year

Add lines 7a and 7b

Public support (Subtract line 7c from
line 6.) .

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » | (a) 2006 (b) 2007 {c) 2008 (d) 2009 (e) 2010 (f) Total

9

10a

Amounts fromlne6 . . . . . . na
Gross income from Interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans, rents,
royalties and income from similar sources

Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975 .

Add lines 10a and 10b

| 11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included in line 10b, whether
or not the business Is regularly carried on
| 12  Other iIncome. Do not include gamn or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part 1V.) . .
13  Total support. (Add lines 9, 100 11
and 12.) .. .
14  First five years. If the Form 990 IS for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stophere . . . e N N
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15  Public support percentage for 2010 (line 8, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f) e 15 %
16  Public support percentage from 2009 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 15 . .. .. . 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17  Investment income percentage for 2010 (ine 10¢, column (f) divided by hine 13, column (f)) . 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2009 Schedule A, Partlll, ine 17 . . . . 18 %
19a 33'3% support tests—2010. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and I|ne 15 1Is more than 33'3%, and line
17 is not more than 33'3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organizaton . P [

20

3313% support tests—2009. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 1s more than 33'3%, and
line 18 1s not mare than 33'3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization » [
Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructtons P [7]

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2Z) 2010




. Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010 Page 4
Supplemental Information. Complete this part to provide the explanations required by Part Il, line 10;
Part Il, ine 17a or 17b; and Part lll, line 12. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See
instructions).

none

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010




. SCHEDULE D | omBNo 1545-0047

(Form 990) Supplemental Financial Statements 2010
» Complete if the organization answered “Yes,” to Form 990,

Department of the Treasu Partlv, line 6,7, 8,9, 10, 11, or 12. Open to Public

Intgrnal Revenue Service v » Attach to Form 990. » See separate instructions. Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens 13-5658824

IEZIl Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete If the
organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

1  Total number at end of year . . na
2  Aggregate contributions to (during year)
3 Aggregate grants from (during year)
4  Aggregate value at end of year .
5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in wnting that the assets held in donor advised

funds are the organization’s property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control? . . . . . . OYes [No
6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used

only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor adwvisor, or for any other purpose
conferring impermissible private benefit? . . . JYes []No
Il Conservation Easements. Complete if The organlzatlon answered “Yes” 1o Form 990, Part IV, e 7.
1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply)
3 Preservation of land for public use (e.g , recreation or education) [] Preservation of an histonically important land area
[ Protection of natural habitat (3 Preservation of a certified historic structure
(O Preservation of open space

2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation
easement on the last day of the tax year.

Held at the End of the Tax Year
a Total number of conservation easements . . e e e e e 2a na
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements . . . . . 2b
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure mcluded n (a) o 2c
d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 8/17/06, and not on a
historic structure listed in the National Register . . 2d
3  Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released extlngwshed or termlnated by the organization during the
tax year P>

4  Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located »

5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? . . . - R . [OYes [INo
6  Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

Y
7  Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

>3
8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)

() and section 170(h)@yB)w? . . . . . . . . . e e e [(OYes [INo

9 In Part XIV, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and
balance sheet, and include, If applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the
organization’s accounting for conservation easements

Part Ill Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.
Complete If the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part 1V, line 8.
1a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report In its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of
public service, provide, in Part X1V, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report In its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of
public service, provide the following amounts relating to these items.

(i) Revenues included in Form 990, Part VIll, lmne1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . > $ na
(i) Assets included in Form 990, PartX . . . . A

2 If the organization received or held works of art, hlstorlcal treasures or other sumllar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:

a Revenues included in Form 990, PartVill,lne1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .P» § na

b Assetsincluded in Form 990, PartX . . . . . . . ; . T

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 52283D Schedule D (Form 990) 2010




. Schedule D (Form 990) 2010 Page 2
Part ] Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

a

b

c
4

5

Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply):

Public exhibition d [J Loan or exchange programs

Scholarly research e [] Other

Preservation for future generations

Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part
XIV.

During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar

assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? . . O Yes No

Part IV Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV,

line 9, or reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1a

o

-0 Q0

2a
b

Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not
included on Form 990, PartX? . . . . . . .. e .. . . [JYes No

If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIV and complete the following table:

Amount
Beginningbalance . . . . . . . . . e e e e e e 1c
Additions during the year . e e .. .o 1d
Distributions during the year e e e e e 1e
Ending balance .. .o 1f
Did the organization mclude an amount on Form 990 Part X Ilne 21?7 . . e co. (JYes [INo

If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIV.

Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 10.

1a
b
c

Q

b
4

(a) Current year {b) Prior year {c) Two years back | (d) Three years back | (e) Four years back
Beginning of year balance .. 135,278,117 139,229,555 192,736,939
Contributions . . . 292,563 275,356 2,247,480
Net investment earnings, galns and
losses . . . .. ce 30,229,427 4,274,064 -47,545,581
Grants or scholarships . . . -566,725 -544,729 -524,981
Other expenditures for facilities and
programs . . . . . . . . . -7,019,357 -7,956,129 -7,684,302
Administrative expenses . . . . 0 0 0
End of year balance . . . 158,214,025 135,278,117 139,229,555
Provide the estimated percentage of the year end balance held as:
Board designated or quasi-endowment » 51.6 %
Permanent endowment » 48.4 %
Term endowment » 0%
Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by. Yes| No
(i} unrelated organizations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. e e . 3ali) v
(ii) related orgamizations . . . . e e 3alii) v
If “Yes" to 3a(n), are the related orgamzatlons Ilsted as reqwred on Schedule R’? . . . 3b

Describe in Part XIV the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.

Land, Buildings, and Equipment. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of investment (a) Cost or other basis | (b) Cost or other basis {c) Accumulated (d) Book value
(investment) (other) depreciation
1a Land e e e
b Buldings . . . . e e . 15,199,579 9,618,679 5,580,900
¢ Leasehold |mprovements
d Equipment . Ce e e 3,440,431 3,074,224 366,207
e Other
Total. Add lines 1athrough 1e (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), ne 10(c).) . . . . W 5,947,107

Schedule D (Form 990) 2010
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Part Vil Investments —Other Securities. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category
(including name of security)

(b) Book value

{c) Method of valuation

Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives .
(2) Closely-held equity interests . .
(3) Other Mutual Funds Government obllgauons i

16,255,617 | Market
__(A) International Value Equity Trust 13,551,118 Market
(B) Limited Partnershlps 6,643,853 | Partner Equity
" (C) Private Equity 666,597 | Participant Equity
{D) Currency Forward Contracts 38,690 |Market
(E)
.6
(G)
(H)
U]
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) line 12.) P 37,155,875

=Z12dY/IIk Investments —Program Related. See Form 990, Part X,

line 13.

(a)} Description of investment type

{b) Book value

(c) Method of valuation

Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) na

)

8

)

()]

6

@)

(8)

9

(10)

Total, (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B}line 13.) »

Other Assets. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description (b) Book value
(1)_Interest and Dividend Receivable + 499,957
@
(©)]
{4)
(6
(6
)
®) _
©
(10)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) ne 15.) . . > 499,957

Other Liabilities. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.

(a) Description of hiability

{b) Amount

( ) Federal income taxes 0
2
Q)
{4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)
(11)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) line 25.) ™ 0

2. FIN 48 (ASC 740) Footnote. In Part XIV, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the
organization’s habtlity for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740).

Schedule D (Form 990) 2010
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mReconciliation of Change in Net Assets from Form 990 to Audited Financial Statements

1  Total revenue (Form 990, Part VI, column (A), line 12) 1 15,299,301
2 Total expenses (Form 990, Part IX, column (A), line 25) . 2 11,482,966
3 Excess or (deficit) for the year. Subtract line 2 from line 1 3 3,816,335
4  Net unrealized gains {losses) on investments 4 20,291,818
5 Donated services and use of facilities 5 0
6 Investment expenses . 6 0
7  Prior penod adjustments . 7 0
8  Other (Describe in Part XIV ) . 8 0
9  Total adjustments (net). Add lines 4 through 8 9 20,291,818
10  Excess or (deficit) for the year per audited financial statements Comblne ||nes 3 and 9 . 10 24,108,153
Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return
Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . e 1 35,118,642
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIIl, ine 12:
a Net unrealized gainsoninvestments . . . . . . . . . . | 2a 20,291,818
b Donated services and use of faciities . . . e ) 0
¢ Recovernes of prioryeargrants . . . . . . .o . . . |2 0
d Other (Describe n Part XIV) . . . D < | 0
e Add lines 2a through 2d 2e 20,291,818
3  Subtract line 2e from hne 1 . 3 14,826,824
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII Inne 12 but not on I|ne1
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line7b . . | 4a 472,477
b Other (Describe nPart XIV.). . . e K ) 0
¢ Add lines 4a and 4b 4c 472,477
5 Total revenue. Add hines 3 and 4c (T h/s must equal Form 990 Partl /lne 12 ) 5 15,299,301
Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return
1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements e e R 1 11,010,489
2  Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, ine 25.
a Donated services and use of facihties . . . . . . . | 2a 0
b Prioryearadjustments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2b 0
¢ Otherlosses . . . . o .. . .. . 2 0
d Other (Describe in Part XIV) e . . . . . |ad 0
e Add hnes 2a through 2d 2e 0
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 3 11,010,489
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, I|ne 25 but not on Ime 1
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part Vill, ine7b . . | 4a 0
b Other (DescrbeinPartXiV). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4b 472,477
¢ Add lines 4a and 4b . 4c 472,477
5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c (T h/s must equal Form 990 Partl //ne 1 8 ) 5 11,482,966

:1s @ \"d Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide the descnptions required for Part Il, ines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, ines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b,
Part V, line 4; Part X, hne 2; Part XI, line 8; Part Xli, lines 2d and 4b; and Part Xll|, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide

any additional information

Sch. D Part lit Line 1A - works or art and historical treasurers are held as part of collections - for educational and/or research - and are not

maintained at the excavation sites provide materials for research and/or are preserved for future generations.

Sch. D Part V Line 4 - the School's endowments are intended to support the long-term educationaliresearch activity of the institution. The

objective is the preserve principal while maintaining the purchasing power of the funds invested.

Schedule D (Form 990) 2010
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SCHEDULE E Schools | omBNo 1545-0047

(Form 990 or 990-E2) » Complete if the organization answered “Yes"” to Form 990, Part IV, line 13, or 2@ 1 o
Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 48. %) Publi
Department of the Treasury pen tq ublic
Intemnal Revenue Service » Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
Trustees of the American School of Classical Sudies at Athnes 13-5658824
YES| NO
1 Does the orgamzation have a racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students by statement in its charter,
bylaws, other governing instrument, or in a resolution of its governing body? .o . . . 1 v
2 Does the organization include a statement of its racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students in all its
brochures, catalogues, and other wrnitten communications with the public dealing with student admissions,
programs, and scholarships? . . . . . . . . . L . o o o000 e e 2 v

3 Has the organization publicized its racially nondiscriminatory policy through newspaper or broadcast media
during the peniod of solicitation for students, or during the registration penod if it has no solicitation program,
in a way that makes the policy known to all parts of the general community 1t serves? If “Yes,” please
describe. If “No,” please explain If you need more space, use Part Il . . e e 3 v

A statement of nondiscrimination is published in brochures, on the School's web site and in public
announcements used to advertise program offerings.

4  Does the organization maintain the following?

a Records indicating the racial composttion of the student body, faculty, and administrative staff? . . . 4a | v
b Records documenting that scholarships and other financial assistance are awarded on a racially
nondiscniminatory basis? . . . . . . ab | v
¢ Copies of all catalogues, brochures, announcements, and other wntten communications to the publlc deahng
with student admissions, programs, and scholarships? . . . .. . . R 4c | v
d Copies of all matenal used by the organization or on its behalf to solicit contributions? . . . . . . . d | v

If you answered “No” to any of the above, please explan. If you need more space, use Part Ii

5 Does the organization discriminate by race in any way with respect to:

a Students’nghtsor privileges? . . . . . . . L L L L oo e e e e 5a v
b Admissions policies? . .. .. ; . .. .. ; . . 5b v
c Employment of faculty or administrative staff? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .o L Lo 5¢ v
d Scholarships or other financial assistance? . e e e e e e e e e e e 5d v
e Educational policies? . . . . . . . . . . e e e e e e 5e v
f Useoffacilities? . . . . . . e e e e e e 5t v
g Athletic programs? . . . .o .. . . . .o .o 5g v
h Other extracurncular activities? . . . 5h v

If you answered “Yes” to any of the above pIease explaln If you need more space, use Part .

6a Does the organization receive any financial aid or assistance from a governmental agency’? . .. 6a| v

b Has the organization’s rnight to such aid ever been revoked or suspended? . . . . . . 6b v
If you answered “Yes” to either ine 6a or line 6b, explain on Part Il

7 Does the organization certify that it has complied with the applicable requirements of sections 4.01 through

4 05 of Rev. Proc. 75-50, 1975-2 C.B. 587, covering racial nondiscrimination? If “No,” explain on Part Il . 7 v

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Cat No 50085D Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2010)
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WSupplemental Information. Complete this part to provide the explanations required by Part |, hines 3, 4d, 5h,
6b, and 7, as applicable. Also complete this part to provide any other additional information (see instructions).

none

Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2010)




SCHEDULEF
(Form 990)

| OMB No 1545-0047

Statement of Activities Outside the United States

» Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990,
Part IV, line 14b, 15, or 16.

» Attach to Form 990. » See separate instructions.

2010

Open to Public

Department of the Treasury

Interna! Revenue Service Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens 13-5658824

IEZXI General Information on Activities Outside the United States. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to
Form 990, Part IV, ine 14b.

1 For grantmakers. Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or

assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and the selection critena used to award the
| grants or assistance? .

[¥Ives [No

For grantmakers. Describe in Part V the organization’s procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds outside the
United States.

3 Activities per Region. (The following Part |, ine 3 table can be duplicated if additional space is needed.)

(a) Region {b) Number of {c) Number of (d) Activities conducted in | (e} If activity listed in (d) 1S (f) Total
offices n the employees, agents, region (by type) (e g, a program service, expenditures for
region and independent fundraising, program describe specific type of and investments
contractors services, Investments, service(s) In region n region
In region grants to recipients
located in the region)
(1) Europe - Greece 1 65 Program Services Instruction 1,255,076
(2) Program Services Libraries 1,931,614
]
| (3) Program Services Excavations 2,339,215
4) Program Services Student Services 438,743
‘ (5) Administrative Fund Raising 22,967
|
|
i (6)
|
| U]
|
1 )
1 (9)
(10)
|
| (11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
3a Sub-total . .o 5,987,615
b Total from continuation
sheets to Part | 0
¢ Totals (add lines 3a and 3b) 5,987,615

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 50082W Schedule F (Form 990) 2010
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Schedule F (Form 990) 2010 Page 4
2:1adl"d Foreign Forms

1 Was the organization a U S transferor of property to a foreign corporation during the tax year? If "Yes,”
the organization may be required to file Form 926, Return by a U.S. Transferor of Property to a Foreign
Corporation (see Instructions for Form 926) . . . . . .o . e O] Yes No

2 Did the organization have an interest in a foreign trust during the tax year? If “Yes,” the organization
may be required to file Form 3520, Annual Return to Report Transactions with Foreign Trusts and
Receipt of Certain Foreign Gifts, and/or Form 3520-A, Annual Information Return of Foreign Trust With a
U.S. Owner (see Instructions for Forms 3520 and 3520-A) . . . . . . e e ] Yes No

3 Did the organization have an ownership interest in a foreign corporation during the tax year? If “Yes,”
the organization may be required to file Form 5471, Information Return of U S Persons with respect to
Certain Foreign Corporations. (see Instructions for Form 5471) C e e e e [ Yes No

4 Was the organization a direct or indirect shareholder of a passive foreign investment company or a
qualfied electing fund during the tax year? If “Yes,” the organization may be required to file Form 8621,
Return by a Shareholder of a Passive Foreign Investment Company or Qualified Electing Fund. (see
Instructions for Form 8621) .. .. e [ Yes No

5 Did the organization have an ownership interest in a foreign partnership during the tax year? If “Yes,”
the organization may be required to file Form 8865, Return of U.S. Persons with respect to Certain
Foreign Partnerships. (see Instructions for Form 8865) . . . e e e e e 1 Yes No

6 Did the organization have any operations in or related to any boycotting countries during the tax year? If
“Yes,” the organization may be required to file Form 5713, International Boycott Report (see Instructions
for Form 5713) . . . e e .. . R e . O Yes No

Schedule F (Form 990) 2010
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Supplemental Information
Complete this part to provide the information required by Part 1, ine 2 (monitoring of funds), Part I, ine 3, column (f)
(accounting method); Part I, ine 1 (accounting method); Part Il (accounting method); and Part lll, column (c) (estimated
number of recipients), as applicable Also complete this part to provide any additional information (see instructions).

Sch. F Part |, Line 2 students (both US and nonUS citizens) are granted scholarships to study in Greece. All students receiving aid are

enrolled in the School programs which are monmitored by the acadermic faculty. In addition, post-doctorate fellows and senior scholars

conduct independent research at the School's facilities.

All scholarships are awarded based on merit.

Students study within and are in contact with the School community while in Greece.

Schedule F {Form 990) 2010
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Supplemental Information Regarding | omBnNo 1545-0047
;%?nfggégr%go-sn undraising or Gaming Activities 2010

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, lines 17, 18, or 19, or if the

Department of the Treasury organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service > Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. P> See separate instructions, Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens 13-5655824

Fundraising Activities. Complete If the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 17.
Form 990-EZ filers are not required to complete this part.
1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activities Check all that apply

a Mail solicitations e Solicitation of non-government grants
b Internet and email solicitations f Solicitation of government grants

c Phone solicitations 9 Special fundraising events

d In-person solicitations

2a Did the organization have a wnitten or oral agreement with any individual (including officers, directors, trustees
or key employees listed in Form 980, Part VII) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services? [ Yes No
b If “Yes,” list the ten highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser is to be
compensated at least $5,000 by the organization.

(v) Amount paid to
(iv) Gross receipts (or retained by)

from activity fundraiser listed in
col (1)

(ni) Did fundraiser have
(i) Activity custody or control of
contnbutions?

{v1) Amount paid to
(or retained by)
organization

(1) Name and address of individual
or entity (fundraiser)

Yes No

10

Total . . . . . . . ..l e e e
3  List all states in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified 1t 1s exempt from
registration or hcensing.
Massachusetts
New York
New Jersey

Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Cat No 50083H Schedute G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010




Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010 Page 2
Part Il Fundraising Events. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported more

than $15,000 of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b. List events with
gross receipts greater than $5,000.

(a) Event #1 (b) Event #2 {c) Other events (d) Total events
Clean Monday (add col (Ia) through
(event type) (event type) {total number) col {e)
21 1 Gross receipts . . 65,150 65,150
&| 2 Less. Chantable
contrnibutions . 5,440 5,440
3  Gross income (line 1 minus
Iine 2) o 59,710 59,710
4 Cash prizes e 0 0
5 Noncashprnizes . . . 0 0
w
$1 6 Rent/facility costs . ; 18,500 18,500
g
K1 7 Foodand beverages . . 13,994 13,994
g
5 8 Entertainment . . . 0
9  Other direct expenses 0
10 Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through 9 in column (d) . A L 32,494 )
11 Net income summary Combine ine 3, column (d), and line 10 - A 4 27,216

EL Sl Gaming. Complete If the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990 Part IV, ine 19, or reported more

than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

o) {b) Pull tabs/instant (d) Total gaming (add
g (a) Bingo bingo/progressive bingo (c) Other gaming col {(a) through col (c))
g
i
1 Grossrevenue . . . . na
$| 2 Cashprizes .
g
2 3 Noncash prizes
Ll
§ 4 Rent/facility costs .
()
5 Other direct expenses
O Yes % | ] Yes % | [] Yes %
6 Volunteerlabor. . . . |[] No L] No ] No
7 Drirect expense summary Add lines 2 throughSmcolumn() . . . . . . . . . . » [ )
8 Net gaming income summary Combine line 1, column d, and line 7 .
9  Enter the state(s) in which the organization operates gaming activities: B
a lIs the organization licensed to operate gaming activities in each of these states? . . . . . OYes [ONo
b If “No,” explain. .
10a Were any of the organization’s gaming licenses revoked, suspended or terminated during the tax year? . [ Yes I:]No )
b If “Yes,” explain.

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010




Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010 Page 3

11 Does the organization operate gaming activities with nonmembers? . . . .o .. (OYes [INo
12 Is the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust or a member of a partnershlp or other entity
formed to administer charitable gaming? . . Coe S e e OYes [INo
13 Indicate the percentage of gaming activity operated in
a Theorganization’sfaciity . . . . . . . e e e e .. 13a %
b Anoutside faciity . . . 13b %
14  Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the orgamzatlon S gammg/specral events books and
records:
Name »
Address »

15a Does the organization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming
revenue? . . . . .. .. . . OvYes []No
b If “Yes,” enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organlzatlon » & and the
amount of gaming revenue retained by the third party» &
¢ If “Yes,” enter name and address of the third party:

Name »

Address »

16  Gaming manager information:

Name »

Description of services provided »

[ Director/officer [J Employee {J Independent contractor

17  Mandatory distributions:
a Is the organization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to
retain the state gaming license? . . . . . .o [OYes []No
b Enter the amount of distributions required under state law to be dlstrlbuted to other exempt organizations or
spent In the organization’s own exempt activities during the tax year »

Wil Supplemental Information. Complete this part to provide the explanations required by Part |, line 2b,
columns (i) and (v), and Part lll, ines 9, 9b, 10b, 15b, 15¢, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also complete this
part to provide any additional information (see instructions).

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010




SCHEDULE J Compensation Information | oms o 15450047

2010

(Form 990) For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest

Compensated Employees
» Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990,

Open to Public

E,?S%’;’.“SS},;’,IJQ%ZS.";”“’ » Attach to Form 933 " “L g:z igparate instructions. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens 13-5658824
Questions Regarding Compensation
Yes | No
1a Check the appropnate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed in Form
990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a Complete Part Il to provide any relevant information regarding these items.
[] First-class or charter travel Housing allowance or residence for personal use
(J Travel for companions [ Payments for business use of personal residence
[ Tax indemnification and gross-up payments (] Health or social club dues or inttiation fees
[ Discretionary spending account [] Personal services (e.g., maid, chauffeur, chef)
b If any of the boxes on Iine 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment
or rembursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If “No,” complete Part Il to
explan . b | vV
2 Didthe organlzatlon require substantlatlon prior to relmbursmg or aIIowmg expenses mcurred by aII offlcers
directors, trustees, and the CEQO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked in line 1a? 2 |V
3 Indicate which, If any, of the following the organization uses to establish the compensation of the
organization’'s CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply.
] Compensation committee Written employment contract
1 Independent compensation consultant (] Compensation survey or study
[} Form 990 of other organizations Approval by the board or compensation committee
4  Dunng the year, did any person listed in Form 990, Part Vi, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization:
a Recelve a severance payment or change-of-control payment from the organization or a related organization? | 4a v
b Participate In, or receive payment from, a supplemental nonqualfied retirement plan? 4b v
¢ Participate In, or receive payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement? 4c v
If “Yes” to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part III
Only section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete lines 5-9.
5  For persons listed in Form 990, Part Vll, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the revenues of:
a The organization? 5a v
b Any related organization? . 5b v
If “Yes” to line 5a or 5b, describe In Part III
6 For persons histed in Form 930, Part VIi, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any T
compensation contingent on the net earnings of:
a The organization? . 6a v
b Any related organization? . 6b v
if “Yes” to line 6a or 6b, describe in Part III
7  For persons listed in Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any non-fixed
payments not described in lines 5 and 67 If “Yes,” describe in Part lll e .o 7 v
8  Were any amounts reported in Form 990, Part Vi, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject
to the nitial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If “Yes,” describe
in Part lll .o . 8 v
9 If “Yes” to line 8§, d|d the orgamzatlon also follow the rebuttable presumptlon procedure descnbed n
Regulations section 53.4958-6(c)? 9
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 50053T Schedule J (Form 990) 2010
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SCHEDULE M
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

Noncash Contributions

» Complete if the organizations answered “Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, lines 29 or 30.

P Attach to Form 990.

| OMB No 1545-0047

2010

Open To Public

Inspection

Name of the organization

Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens

m Types of Property

Employer identification number

13-5658824

(a)

(b)

(3]

Noncash contribution

(d)

Check if | Number of contributions or Method of determining
applicable items contributed F amounts reported on noncash contribution amounts
orm 990, Part VIII, line 1g
1 Art—Works of art
2  Art—Historical treasures .
3 Art—Fractional interests .
4 Books and publications
5 Clothing and household
goods .
6 Cars and other vehicles
7 Boats and planes
8 Intellectual property
9  Secunties—Publicly traded . v 6 211,595 [Market Value at Date of Gift
10  Secunities—Closely held stock .
11 Securities — Partnership, LLC,
or trust interests
12  Securities—Miscellaneous
13  Qualified conservation
contribution—Historic
structures . .
14  Qualfied conservation
contnbution—Other
15 Real estate—Residential .
16 Real estate—Commercial
17  Real estate—Other .
18 Collectibles
19  Food inventory .
20 Drugs and medical supplies
21 Taxidermy .
22 Historical artifacts .
23  Scientific specimens
24  Archeological artifacts
25 Other» ( )
26 Other P ( )
27 Other» ( )
28 Other > ( )
29 Number of Forms 8283 recewved by the orgamization during the tax year for contributions for
which the organization completed Form 8283, Part IV, Donee Acknowledgement 29 0
Yes| No
30a During the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part |, ines 1-28 that
it must hold for at least three years from the date of the initial contribution, and which 1s not required to be
used for exempt purposes for the entire holding period? 30a v
b If “Yes,” describe the arrangement in Part Il.
31 Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any non-standard
contributions? A < Y B 4
32a Does the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations to solicit, process, or sell noncash
contributions? . 323 v
b If “Yes,” describe in Part [l
33 If the organization did not report an amount in column (c) for a type of property for which column (a) 1s checked,

describe in Part Il

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

Cat No 51227J

Schedule M {Form 990) (2010)




Schedule M (Form 990) (2010) Page 2
Part 1l Supplemental Information. Complete this part to provide the information required by Part I, ines 30b, 32b,
and 33. Also complete this part for any additional information.

none

Schedule M (Form 990) (2010)




SCHEDULE O | OMB No 1545-0047

(Form 990 or 990-E2) Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ

Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 2(@ 1 0
Department of the Treasury Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information. Open to Public
Intemal Revenue Service > Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Inspection
Name of the organization ) Employer identification number
Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens 13-5658824

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, Line 11B

The Treasurer and Secretary of the Board review the 990 before a copy is provided to the full Board prior to signing and filing.

Form 990, Part Vi, Section B, Line 12C

All Trustees, Officers, key employees and senior administrator staff are provided, annually, with the School's Conflict of Interest Policy

file at the School's Princeton office. Any noted conflict must be reported to the Executive Commuttee of the Board, which shall either

determine that a conflict does or does not exist or refer the potential conflict to the full Board for such determination/resolution.

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, Line 15B

upon request.

_Form 990, Part XI Line 5 and Schedule D, Part Xil, Line 2a - Unrealized gains on investments.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Cat No 51056K Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2010)
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Name of the organization Employer identification number

Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E2) (2010)




AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)




Suite 200
1305 Walt Whitman Road
Melville, NY 11747-4302

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Trustees
American School of Classical Studies
at Athens:

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of American School of Classical
Studies at Athens (the School) as of June 30, 2011, and the related statements of activities and cash flows
for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the School’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. The prior year
summarized comparative information has been derived from the School’s 2010 financial statements and, 1n
our report dated February 8, 2011, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 1n the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of American School of Classical Studies at Athens as of June 30, 2011, and the changes
in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

KPme LP

December 21, 2011

KPMG LLP s a Delaware hmited labiity partnership,
the US member firm of KPMG Intemational Cooperative
{"KPMG International’), a Swiss enuty




AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2011 .
(with comparative financial information as of June 30, 2010)

Assets 2011 2010
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,298,769 1,266,051
Contributions and other receivables, net 1,104,345 857,691
Accrued investment income 499,957 544,257
Prepaid expenses 90,766 114,750
Investments (notes 2 and 3) 158,848,651 134,592,761
Plant assets, net of accumulated depreciation (note 5) 5,947,107 6,296,869
Total assets $ 167,789,595 143,672,379
Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses h) 612,225 614,297
Deferred revenue 166,278 155,143
Total liabilities 778,503 769,440

Net assets:

Unrestricted:

Operating 69,656,626 58,892,059
Designated for future capital projects 585,317 385,317
Investment in plant assets 5,947,107 6,296,869
Total unrestricted 76,189,050 65,574,245
Temporarily restricted (note 8) 67,758,329 54,484,727
Permanently restricted (note 8) 23,063,713 22,843,967
Total net assets 167,011,092 142,902,939
Total liabilities and net assets 167,789,595 143,672,379

See accompanying notes to financial statements.




AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2011
(with summanized financial information for the year ended June 30, 2010)

2011
Temporarily Permanently 2010
Unrestricted restricted restricted Total Total
Operating revenues, gains, losses and other support
Student tuition and fees $ 571,788 — — 571,788 544,688
Federal awards 280,214 — — 280,214 229,640
Contributions and grants 956,003 1,976,200 292,563 3,224,766 2,749,247
Investment return authorized for use
1n operations (note 4) 3,555,151 3,091,048 — 6,646,199 6,513,000
Other revenues 293,534 518,913 — 812,447 304,488
Total operating revenues, gains
and losses 5,656,690 5,586,161 292,563 11,535,414 10,341,063
Net assets released from restrictions (note 7) 3,935,268 (3,935,268) — — —
Total operating revenues, gains,
losses and other support 9,591,958 1,650,893 292,563 11,535,414 10,341,063
Operating expenses (note 6)
Program services
Instruction 1,680,387 — — 1,680,387 1,582,268
Publications 840,179 — — 840,179 796,014
Libraries 2,662,961 — — 2,662,961 2,790,633
Excavations and research 3,489,876 — — 3,489,876 2,967,395
General administration 2,337,086 — — 2,337,086 2,145,046
Total operating expenses 11,010,489 — — 11,010,489 10,281,356
(Decrease) increase in net
assets from operating activities (1,418,531) 1,650,893 292,563 524,925 59,707
Other revenues, gains (losses) and other support
Investment return less amounts authonized
for use 1n operations (note 4) 12,033,336 11,549,892 — 23,583,228 (2,238,936)
Reclassification of contribution (note 8) — 72,817 (72,817) — —
Increase (decrease) 1n net assets 10,614,805 13,273,602 219,746 24,108,153 (2,179,229)
Net assets as of beginning of year 65,574,245 54,484,727 22,843,967 142,902,939 145,082,168
Net assets as of end of year $ 76,189,050 67,758,329 23,063,713 167,011,092 142,902,939

See accompanying notes to financial statements




AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2011
(with comparative financial information for the year ended June 30, 2010)

2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities.
Increase (decrease) 1n net assets $ 24,108,153 (2,179,229)
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets to
net cash used 1n operating activities:
Depreciation expense 661,936 892,073
Net realized and unrealized gains (28,353,436) (2,177,896)
Contributions restricted for long-term investment and
acquisitions of plant assets (1,733,373) (1,149,229)
Changes 1n assets and liabilities:
Contributions and other receivables 108,367 (271,520)
Accrued investment income 44,300 165,538
Prepaid expenses 23,984 40,038
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (2,072) (135,943)
Deferred revenue 11,135 327
Net cash used in operating activities (5,131,006) (4,815,841)
Cash flows from mvesting activities:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 217,238,024 524,735,993
Purchases of investments (213,140,478) (521,846,422)
Acquisitions of plant assets (312,174) (307,694)
Net cash provided by investing activities 3,785,372 2,581,877
Cash flows from financing activities:
Contributions restricted for long-term investment and acquisitions
of plant assets 1,733,373 1,149,229
(Increase) decrease in contributions receivable related to plant
assets and endowment (355,021) 988,086
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,378,352 2,137,315
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 32,718 (96,649)
Cash and cash equivalents as of beginning of year 1,266,051 1,362,700
Cash and cash equivalents as of end of year $ 1,298,769 1,266,051

See accompanying notes to financial statements.




AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2010)

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

American School of Classical Studies at Athens (the School), founded in 1881, offers both graduate
students and scholars the opportunity to study Greek civilization first hand in Greece. The School’s
mission is to teach the archaeology, art, history, language, and literature of Greece from early times to the
present, to survey and excavate archaeological sites in Greece, and to publish the results of 1ts excavation

and research.

The School is an organization described under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and

therefore 1s exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(a) of the Code.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements, which are presented on the accrual basis of accounting, have
been prepared to focus on the School as a whole and to present balances and transactions according
to the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions Accordingly, net assets and changes

therein are classified as follows:

. Permanently restricted net assets — net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they
be maintained permanently by the School. Generally, the donors of these assets permit the
School to use all or part of the income earned on related investments for general or specific

purposes.

. Temporarily restricted net assets — net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that will be

met by actions of the School and/or by the passage of time.

|
|
| . Unrestricted net assets — net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Revenues are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets unless use of the related asset is limited
by donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net assets. Realized
and unrealized gains and losses on investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases
or decreases in unrestricted net assets unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by

restrictions.

Contributions

law. Expiration of temporary restrictions on net assets 1s reported as net assets released from

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues in the period
received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until they become unconditional, that 1s,
when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Contributions of assets other than

cash are recorded at their estimated fair value at date of donation.

(Continued)




AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2010)

Contributions receivable are expected to be received during the indicated time periods and have been
discounted for the time value of money as of June 30:

2011 2010
One year or less $ 334,104 289,312
Between one and five years 474,000 160,536
808,104 449,848
Less:
Present value discount (1.063% - 5.063%) (10,599) (7,364)
$ 797,505 442,484

Release of Restrictions on Net Assets Used for Acquisition of Plant Assets

Contributions of plant assets without donor stipulations concerning the use of such long-lived assets
are reported as revenues of the unrestricted net asset class. Contributions of cash or other assets to be
used to acquire plant assets without such donor stipulations are reported as revenues of the
temporarily restricted net asset class; the restrictions are considered to be released at the time such
acquured long-lived assets are placed 1n service.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing program services and support services of the School have been summarized
on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain operating costs have been
allocated among the functional categories.

The School’s primary program services are instruction, publications, libraries and excavations and
research. Expenses reported as general administration are incurred in support of these program
services. Fundraising costs, included in general administration expenses, were approximately
$304,000 and $190,000 in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Works of Art, Historical Treasures and Similar Assets

Works of art and historical treasures held as part of a collection - for education and/or research - are
not recognized or capitalized in the accompanying financial statements.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are so near their maturity (original maturities of three months or less) that they
present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates, except for those
managed as a component of the School’s investment portfolio.

6 (Continued)




AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2010)

Foreign Currency Transactions

The School’s accounting records in Greece are maintained in Euro’s. Transactions in Euro’s are
converted into U.S. dollars at average monthly exchange rates during the year. The average exchange
rate for fiscal 2011 and 2010 was 1.371 and 1.384, U.S. dollar to one Euro, respectively. Cash held
in Euro’s has been translated into U.S. dollars at the foreign exchange rate in effect as of June 30,
2011 and 2010, which was 1.442 and 1.234, U.S. dollar to one Euro, respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value 1s defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a
liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability n an
orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. A fair value hierarchy was
established, which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use
of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that
may be used to measure fair value:

. Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 1 assets and
liabilities include debt and equity securities that are traded in an active exchange market, as
well as U.S. Treasury securities.

. Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets
or liabilities; quotes prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or
can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or
liabilities, as well as any alternative investments (measured at net asset value) that are
redeemable at or near the date of the statement of financial position. Level 2 assets and
liabilities include debt securities with quoted market prices that are traded less frequently than
exchange-traded instruments. This category generally includes certain U.S. Government and
agency mortgage-backed debt securities, corporate-debt securities and certain alternative
investments.

. Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are
significant to the fair value of the asset or labilities, as well as any alternative investments
(measure at net asset value) that are not redeemable near the date of the statement of financial
position. Level 3 assets and labilities include financial instruments whose value 1s determined
using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as
instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant management
judgment or estimation. This category generally includes certain private debt and equity
mstruments and certain alternative investments.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on available market information and
judgments about the financial asset, including estimates of timing, amount of expected future cash
flows and the credit standing of the issuer. In some cases, the fair value estimates cannot be
substantiated by comparison to independent markets. In addition, the disclosed fair value may not be
realized in the immediate settlement of the financial asset. In addition, the disclosed fair values do

7 (Continued)




AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2010)

not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering for sale at one time an entire
holding of a particular financial asset. Potential taxes and other expenses that would be incurred in an
actual sale or settlement are not reflected in amounts disclosed.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognized in the financial statements and measured at fair value
regardless of the purpose or intent for holding them. The fair value of the derivatives held is based
upon values provided by third-party financial institutions.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The School maintains a significant and diverse investment portfolio which includes money market
funds, U.S. Government obligations, debt and equity securities and alternative investments.
Alternative investments include interests in limited partnerships. These instruments may contain
elements of both credit and market risk. Such risks include, but are not limited to, limited liquidity,
absence of regulatory oversight, dependence on key individuals and nondisclosure of portfolio
composition. The School reviews the performance and risks associated with these investments on at
least a monthly basis. In addition, the School utilizes the services of an investment consultant who
continually monitors the individual investment fund performance, any changes in management at the
investment fund or any other significant matters affecting the fund and advises the School of any
such changes.

As the School is dependent on investment return to fund a significant portion of the operations of the
School, a significant decrease in investment return may have a material impact on the financial
position, changes in net assets, and cash flows of the School.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

During fiscal ycar 2011, the School adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2010-06, Improving Disclosures about Fawr Value
Measurement, and applied its provisions to its long term investments. ASU No. 2010-06 provides
amendments to ASC 820-10 that clarify disclosures regarding the level of disaggregation and the
inputs and valuation techniques as well as added new disclosures for transfers between Level one
and Level two.

Prior Year Summarized Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but
not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information
should be read in conjunction with the School’s financial statements for the year ended June 30,
2010, from which the summarized information was derived.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and hiabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts 1n the 2010 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2011
presentation.

Subsequent Events

FASB ASC Topic 855, Subsequent Events (ASC 855), establishes principles and requirements for
subsequent events and applies to accounting for and disclosures of subsequent events not addressed
in other applicable generally accepted accounting principles. The School evaluated events
subsequent to June 30, 2011 and through December 21, 2011, the date on which the financial
statements were issued.

Investments
Overall Investment Objective

The overall investment objective of the School is to 1nvest its assets 1n a prudent manner that will achieve a
long-term rate of return sufficient to fund a portion of its annual operating activities and increase
investment value after inflation. The School diversifies its investments among various asset classes,
incorporating multiple strategies and managers. Major investment decisions are authorized by the Board’s
Investment Committee, which oversees the School’s investment program in accordance with established
guidelines.

Allocation of Investment Strategies

In addition to traditional stocks and fixed-income securities, the School also holds shares or units in
traditional institutional funds as well as in alternative investment funds involving hedged strategies.
Hedged strategies involve funds whose managers have the authority to invest in various asset classes at
their discretion, including the ability to invest tong and short. Funds with hedged strategies generally hold
securities or other financial instruments for which a ready market exists and may include stocks, bonds, put
or call options, swaps, currency hedges and other instruments, and are valued accordingly. Other hedged
strategies may require the estimation of fair values by the fund managers in the absence of readily
determinable market values. Because of the inherent uncertainties of valuation, which may be based on
historical cost, appraisals or other estimates that require varying degrees of judgment, these estimated fair
values may differ significantly from values that would have been used had a ready market existed, and the
differences could be material. Such valuations are determined by fund managers and generally consider
variables such as operating results, comparable earnings multiples, projected cash flows, recent sales
prices, and other pertinent information, and may reflect discounts for the 1tliquid nature of certain
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investments held. Moreover, the fair values of the School’s interests in shares or units of these funds,
because of liquidity and capital commitment terms that vary depending on the specific fund or partnership
agreement, may differ from the fair value of the funds’ underlying net assets. The School’s interest in these
funds are reported at net asset value (NAV). NAV is used as a practical expedient to measure fair value.
Classification of these fund investments in Level 2 or 3 1s based on the School’s ability to redeem its
interest at or near the date of the statement of financial position, and 1f the interest can be redeemed 1n the

near term, the investment is classified as Level 2.

The School invests in investment grade short-term debt instruments and limits the amount of credit

exposure to any one entity.

Investments consisted of the following as of June 30, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
Money market funds $ 19,331,951 15,639,803
Euro currency holdings 13,183,935 9,569,140
U.S. Government obligations 469,200 3,656,350
Foreign bonds and equities 15,045,700 14,953,628
U.S. corporate equity 59,584,204 44,922 464
U.S. corporate bonds and debentures 14,077,786 16,102,505
Mutual fund - government securities 16,255,617 13,873,948
International value equity trust 13,551,118 10,732,713
Limited partnership 6,643,853 4,632,740
Private equity 666,597 750,192
Foreign currency forward contracts 38,690 (240,722)
$ 158,848,651 134,592,761

The School’s portfolio also includes certain types of financial instruments, such as foreign currency

forward contracts, which involve varying degrees of off-balance sheet risk (see note 3).
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The following table presents the School’s fair value hierarchy for those assets and labilities measured at
fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2011:

|
|
|
|
Fair
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets.
Investments
Money market funds $ 19,331,951 19,331,951 — —
Euro currency holdings 13,183,935 13,183,935 — —_
U S Government obligations 469,200 469,200 — —
Foreign bonds and equities 15,045,700 — 15,045,700 —_
U S corporate equities 59,584,204 59,584,204 — —
U.S corporate bond and
debentures 14,077,786 14,077,786 — —
Mutual fund - government
securities 16,255,617 — 16,255,617 —
International value equity trust 13,551,118 — 13,551,118 —_
Limited partnership 6,643,853 — 6,643,853 —
Private equity 666,597 — — 666,597
Foreign currency forward
contracts 38,690 — — 38,690
Total $ 158,848,651 106,647,076 51,496,288 705,287
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The following table presents the School’s fair value hierarchy for those assets and liabilities measured at
fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2010:

Fair
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets.
Investments
Money market funds $ 15,639,803 15,639,803 — —
Euro currency holdings 9,569,140 9,569,140 — —
U S Government obligations 3,656,350 3,656,350 —_ —
Foreign bonds and equities 14,953,628 — 14,953,628 —
U S corporate equities 44,922,464 44,922,464 — —
U S corporate bond and
debentures 16,102,505 16,102,505 — —_
Mutual fund - government
securities 13,873,948 — 13,873,948 —
International value equity trust 10,732,713 — 10,732,713 —
Limited partnership 4,632,740 — 4,632,740 —
Private equity 750,192 — — 750,192
Foreign currency forward
contracts (240,722) — — (240,722)
Total $ 134,592,761 89,890,262 44,193,029 509,470

The following table presents a reconciliation for all Level 3 assets measured at fair value for the period
July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2011:

Level 3 assets

Foreign
currency
Private forward
Equity contracts
Financial assets:

Beginning balance July 1, 2010 $ 750,192 (240,722)
Total unrealized gains (losses) 46,899 38,690
Redemptions (130,494) (167,182,922)
Purchases — 167,423,644

Ending balance June 30, 2011 $ 666,597 38,690
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Investment liquidity as of June 30, 2011 is aggregated below based on redemption or sale period:

Investment
fair values

Investment redemption or sale period:

Daily $ 121,692,776
Monthly 36,450,588
Maturity every two months 38,690
Subject to rolling lock-ups 666,597

Total as of June 30, 2011 $ 158,848,651

Redemption Restrictions

At June 30, 2011 and 2010, the School’s alternative investments included $6,682,543 and $4,392,018,
respectively, which were not restricted from redemption The terms and conditions upon which the School
may redeem such alternative investments 1s six days written notice. Also included in the June 30, 2011
private equity investment 1s $666,597 which is subject to a lock-up period until October 31, 2012, at which
time the investment matures and will be closed out.

Derivative Financial Instruments

During 2011 and 2010, the School entered into foreign currency forward contracts with various maturity
dates. The foreign currency forward contracts are a partial hedge to limit the School’s exposure to changes
in exchange rates. Under the terms of the contract, the School has committed to purchase Euro currency at
a fixed exchange rate for 26,400,000 U.S. dollars on the maturity date of the contract, August 15, 2011,

The fair value of the forward contracts was $38,690 and ($240,722) as of June 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The School reports these derivative financial instruments at fair value in the accompanying
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, with any gains and losses recognized 1n the
statement of activities.

Investment Return

Investment return consists of interest, dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses on
investments. Each year, the School includes a portion of 1ts investment return in 1ts operating budget, with
the amount of such planned support determined using its spending policy. The policy of the School is to
distribute for current spending a percentage of the five year moving average of the fair value of pooled
investments as of December 31, currently 4.5%, annually.
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The components of investment return for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Interest and dividends
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses)
Investment advisory fees

Total investment return

$

Investment return authorized for use in operations

Investment return less amounts authorized

for use in operations

Plant Assets

2011 2010
2,348,468 2,546,551
28,353,436 2,177,896
(472,477) (450,383)
30,229,427 4,274,064
(6,646,199) (6,513,000)
23,583,228 (2,238,936)

Plant assets are stated at cost or fair value at date of donation and are comprised of the following as of

June 30, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
Net Net
Carrying Accumulated carrying Carrying Accumulated carrying
value depreciation value value depreciation value

Building improvements

Blegen Library $ 2,484,879 2,460,110 24,769 2,484,879 2,453,013 31,866

Davis and Blegen Library 200,000 200,000 —_ 200,000 200,000 —

Loring Hall 200,800 200,800 — 200,800 200,800 —

Gennadrus Library 9,009,704 4,632,320 4,377,384 9,009,704 4,348,167 4,661,537

Apartment at Athens 87,999 87,999 — 87,999 87,999 —

Other buildings 2,976,049 2,037,450 938,599 2,779,788 1,848,226 931,562
Equipment 3,440,431 3,074,224 366,207 3,324,518 2,892,762 431,756
Construction in progress 240,148 — 240,148 240.148 — 240,148

$ 18,640,010 12,692,903 5,947,107

18,327,836

12,030,967

6,296,869

Depreciation of building improvements and equipment 1s provided by the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, ranging from five to ten years.

The School expenses the purchases of books for its libraries. The School maintained approximately
218,300 and 215,100 volumes that were housed in the Gennadius and Blegen Libraries during 2011 and

2010, respectively.
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(6) Operating Expenses

Operating expenses by natural classification for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

2011 2010

Salaries $ 4,823,252 4,492,847
Payroll tax, pension, and benefits 1,630,014 1,478,424
Fellowships 494215 515,649
Excavation, program and research costs 1,235,077 1,287,205
Legal 65,315 52,523
Other professional fees 115,217 117,850
Telephone/utilities 424,319 366,370
Postage 25,479 18,630
Occupancy 115,605 112,747
Minor equipment and supplies 274,258 237,158
Depreciation 661,936 892,073
Other 1,145,802 709,880

$ 11,010,489 10,281,356

(7) Net Assets Released from Restrictions

Donor restrictions were met by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purposes or by occurrence of
events specified by the donors for the year ended June 30, 2011 as follows:

Amount
Instruction/fellowships 5 930,972
Publications 617,712
Libraries 892,370
Excavations and research and acquisitions of plant assets 1,350,166
General administration and other 144,048
$ 3,935,268
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(8) Restrictions and Limitations on Net Asset Balances

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets consisted of gifts and other unexpended revenues and gains available for
the following as of June 30, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010

Instruction/fellowships $ 13,365,505 10,691,230
Publications 17,350,601 14,164,256
Libraries 16,557,364 13,411,553
Excavations and research 14,649,976 12,143,031
Acquisitions of plant assets 5,835,883 3,985,847
General administration — 88,810

$ 67,759,329 54,484,727

Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Permanently restricted net assets consisted of endowment gifts with income to be used for the following as
of June 30, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Instruction/fellowships $ 5,372,524 5,243,154
Publications 982,599 982,313
Libraries 6,184,748 6,123,209
Excavations and research 4,509,931 4,481,380
General administration 6,013,911 6,013,911
$ 23,063,713 22,843,967

Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor requires the School to retain as a fund of perpetual duration In
accordance with GAAP, deficiencies of this nature are to be reported in unrestricted net assets as of year
end. These deficiencies result from unfavorable market fluctuations that occur shortly after the investment
of new permanently restricted contributions and continued appropriation for certain programs that are
deemed prudent by the board of trustees. There were no such deficiencies as of June 30, 2011 or 2010.
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Interpretation of Relevant Law

The board of trustees of the School has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional
Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the purchasing power of the original gift as of the
gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. The
School classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the
permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and
(c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made 1n accordance with the direction of the applicable
donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The investment income earned on
the accumulations to the permanently restricted endowment funds is classified as temporarily restricted net
assets until the donor-imposed restrictions have been met and appropriated by the Board for expenditure.

Spending Policy

The School has a policy of appropriating, each year, for distribution 4.5% of its endowment fund’s average
fair value, as of December 31, over the prior five years preceding the fiscal year in which the distribution 1s
planned. In establishing this policy, the School considered the long-term expected return on its endowment.
Accordingly, over the long term, the School expects the current spending policy to allow its endowment to
grow at an average of a least 2% annually. This is consistent with the School’s objective to maintain the
purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity as well as provide additional real growth
through new gifts and investment returns.

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

The School has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of income and growth, while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the
endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that the School must
hold 1n perpetuity. Under this policy, as approved by the School’s board of trustees, the endowment assets
are invested in a manner that 1s intended to produce moderate to high rates of return whtle assuming a
moderate to low level of investment risk.

The following represents the net asset classes of the School’s board-designated and donor-restricted
endowment funds at June 30, 2011:

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted restricted restricted Total
Board-designated endowment funds $ 74,185,580 — — 74,185,580
Donor-restricted endowment funds — 60,964,732 23,063,713 84,028,445
$ 74,185,580 60,964,732 23,063,713 158,214,025
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The following represents the net asset classes of the School’s donor-restricted endowment funds at

June 30, 2010:

Board-designated endowment funds
Donor-restricted endowment funds

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted restricted restricted Total
63,019,299 — — 63,019,299
— 49,414,851 22,843,967 72,258,818
63,019,299 49,414,851 22,843,967 135,278,117

The following table presents changes 1n endowment net assets for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2011:

Endowment net assets at
July 1, 2009
Net realized and unrealized losses
Interest and dividends, net of fees
Contributions
Appropriation of endowment
assets for expenditure
Reclassification of contribution

Endowment net assets at
June 30, 2010

Net realized and unrealized losses

Interest and dividends, net of fees

Contributions

Appropriation of endowment
assets for expenditure

Reclassification of contribution

Endowment net assets at
June 30, 2011

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted restricted restricted Total
65,513,276 50,422,668 23,293,611 139,229,555
1,124,026 1,053,870 — 2,177,896
1,081,846 1,014,322 — 2,096,168
— — 275,356 275,356
(4,699,849) (3,076,009) — (7,775,858)
— — (725,000) (725,000)
63,019,299 49,414,851 22,843,967 135,278,117
14,621,100 13,732,336 — 28,353,436
967,398 908,593 — 1,875,991
— — 292,563 292,563
(4,422,217) (3,091,048) — (7,513,265)
— — (72,817) (72,817)
74,185,580 60,964,732 23,063,713 158,214,025
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Retirement Plan

The School has a defined contribution retirement plan covering U.S. citizen professional employees, which
1s funded on a current basis, principally by payments to the Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association
and to The Vanguard Group. Pension expense amounted to approximately $175,010 and $188,000 for the
years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Commitments
Termination and Retirement Indemnities

In accordance with Greek law, compensation is payable to employees upon their dismissal, except for legal
cause. The amount of compensation 1s based on the number of years of service and amount of
remuneration at date of dismissal. Should the employees remain with the School until normal retirement
age, 40% of such compensation must be paid to them on retirement. The School follows the policy of
paying managerial and clerical employees 60% of such compensation and paying other employees 50% of
such compensation. During the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, charges to operations for termination
and retirement indemnities were $180,746 and $125,003, respectively. No accrual for active employees has
been recorded in the accompanying statement of financial position. The maximum liability for termination
and retirement indemnities, if all employees are dismissed based on 100% of such compensation as of
June 30, 2011 and 2010, approximates $1,454,000 and $1,328,000, respectively.

Operating Lease

The School leases office space under an operating lease arrangement expiring April 30, 2012. Rental
expense for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 was $100,496 and $97,566, respectively. The
minimum annual rental commitment in 2012 approximates $86,000.
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